
 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 1 
 

Board of Education 

Policy Committee Meeting of the Whole 

 

Parent Forum 

 

February 3, 2011 

6:00PM 

 

MINUTES 
 

Attendance:  Commissioner Cruz (Chair); Commissioners Campos, White, Evans, Elliott and 

Williams.  Commissioner Powell absent.  Parent Representative:  Vicki Robertson.  District 

Staff:  Chuck Johnson, Gladys Pedraza Burgos, and Dorothy Evans-Flaherty.  Board Staff:  

Debra Flanagan 

 

Commissioner Cruz convened the meeting at 6:10 p.m.  He emphasized the importance of Parent 

Involvement policy in establishing collaborative relationships between parents and the District 

for the benefit of students.  Commissioner Cruz noted that parent input is crucial to informing 

this policy and this is the purpose for this evening’s Parent Forum. 

 

I.        Highlights of Proposed Revision to Parent Involvement Policy (1900) 

 

Dorothy Evans-Flaherty provided handout materials to the Commissioners and to audience 

members which explain the proposed changes to the policy.  She pointed out that national 

standards have been added which align with the District’s Strategic Plan and provide a 

framework for building family-school partnerships.  Ms. Evans-Flaherty also noted that a 

definition of family engagement has been included to establish principles for parent involvement, 

and to emphasize the importance of continuous involvement throughout the child’s life and in the 

many different settings which promote a child’s learning and development. She explained that 

the changes regarding the District-wide Parent Council reflect current District policy regarding 

eligibility.  In addition, Ms. Evans-Flaherty reported that a new section has been added to create 

a process for parents to file complaints at the school and District level.   

 

II. Questions regarding Proposed Revision of Parent Involvement Policy 

 

Commissioner Cruz then opened up the discussion to allow questions from the Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Elliott expressed concern regarding the low turnout for this Parent Forum, 

particularly since it pertains to a policy affecting all parents. 

 

Commissioner Williams asked about the way in which the effectiveness of the parent 

engagement efforts will be measured.  Ms. Evans-Flaherty replied that evaluation of 

effectiveness would be measured against the national standards contained in the policy. 

 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 2 
 

Commissioner White inquired about the status of the regulations referenced in the policy.  Ms. 

Pedraza Burgos stated that regulations are currently being developed.  Commissioner White 

asked whether the regulations would be developed before or after Board approval is sought for 

the policy.  Chuck Johnson stated that the regulations could be developed at either of these times, 

but recommended that they be developed prior to submitting the policy to the Board so that 

Commissioners will know how the policy is to be implemented. 

 

Commissioner White pointed out that the proposed policy does not contain guidelines for 

involving parents in crucial decisions, such as school closings.  He suggested that the policy 

describe the process for notifying parents that such decisions are under consideration and for 

their involvement in decision-making. 

 

Commissioner White also expressed concern regarding the legalistic definitions and 

requirements for eligibility to serve on the Parent Council.  He noted that many families do not 

meet the conventional description and may not have formal legal authorization for raising the 

child in their care, but nevertheless have assumed the responsibility and therefore should be 

eligible to serve on the Parent Council.  He also emphasized the importance of the 

Superintendent meeting with the Parent Council on a regular basis to inform them of important 

developments in the District affecting parents, particularly since two-way communication has 

been a serious problem. 

 

Commissioner White requested that reports be provided on a regular basis to the Board from the 

Customer Service Department of the Office of Parent Engagement.  These reports are to inform 

the Board of parent concerns and the way in which they are being addressed. 

 

Commissioner Campos noted that none of the materials provided in this evening’s Parent Forum 

have been translated into Spanish and no translator is present to allow participation of bilingual 

parents.   

 

Commissioner Campos also pointed out that the policy does not contain any reference to the 

large and growing immigrant population in Rochester, or ways to ensure that these parents and 

families are engaged.   

 

Commissioner Campos underscored the importance of the policy providing guidelines regarding 

School-Based Planning Teams, or at least referencing the existing School-Based Planning Team 

policy. 

 

Parent Representative Vicki Robertson voiced concern about the proposed policy change from 

“shall actively seek advice of parents…” to  “may actively seek advice of parents….”.  She 

inquired as to how schools, staff, and Central Office will be held accountable for effectiveness in 

parent engagement. 

 

Commissioner Williams asked why the Administration is drafting the Parent Involvement policy 

rather than the Board, since policies are under the purview of the Board.  Commissioner Cruz 

replied that it is standard practice to have policies created by the staff responsible for their 

implementation. 

 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 3 
 

Commissioner Elliott stated that she has received reports of parents being threatened with arrest 

by school staff when simply attempting to speak with staff about their child.  She contended that 

too often parents are met with condescension and approached as adversaries in interactions with 

staff.  She suggested including parent engagement and interaction as a significant aspect of staff 

performance evaluations. 

 

Commissioner Elliott asked about the rationale for eliminating student discipline, collective 

bargaining, and personnel selection as areas of cooperation in which parents would be consulted.  

Mr. Johnson replied that parents are not currently being included in these discussions, so these 

specific areas were eliminated to reflect current practice.  He stated that these specific areas 

could be reinstated in the policy, but the District would have to ensure that parents are involved 

in these decisions to comply with the policy requirement. 

 

Commissioner Elliott inquired as to the rationale for removing the section regarding involving 

parents in problem identification, analysis, generation of alternatives, and evaluation.  Ms. 

Evans-Flaherty replied that this section seemed to be outdated. 

 

Commissioner Elliott suggested including in the policy the specific times of year that the 

Superintendent will meet with the Parent Council (e.g. October, January, April, etc.) rather than 

leaving this to “mutually agreeable times”. 

 

Commissioner Elliott also questioned the reason for removing the provision regarding 

conducting surveys to determine parents’ positions on issues. 

 

Commissioner Elliott asked how the information from parents’ complaints will be used.  She 

suggested that this information be used in staff performance evaluations and in collective 

bargaining agreements. 

 

Commissioner Elliott also pointed out that a timeline is needed for evaluation and report to the 

Board regarding the efficacy of parent engagement efforts and implementation of the policy. 

 

 

III. Parent Input regarding Proposed Revision to Parent Involvement Policy 

 

1. Gloria Sabastro 

 

Ms. Sabastro emphasized the importance of having all materials translated into Spanish to 

ensure that all parents are able to participate in public forums and meetings.  She stated that a 

number of parents did not attend this Parent Forum because they knew that they would have 

to sit in the audience without being able to understand or participate. 

 

Action Item:  Ms. Evans-Flaherty will have the proposed revision to the Parent 

Involvement policy (1900) and the accompanying regulation translated into Spanish 

and distributed to all parents in the District. 

 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 4 
 

Ms. Sabastro noted that the Bilingual Council should be involved in decision-making 

regarding the school closure process, as well as the Parent Council.  She also suggested 

involving the School-Based Planning Teams in this process. 

 

Ms. Sabastro asked the Board to consider the timing of public forums and meetings to ensure 

that they coincide with parents’ schedules, pointing out that it would be much easier for 

many parents to attend during the day. 

 

Finally, Ms. Sabastro emphasized the lack of communication between the District and 

parents, noting that parents are typically notified of decisions after the fact or not at all. 

 

2. Carol Robinson 

 

Ms. Robinson asked about the timeline for implementing the changes to the Parent 

Involvement policy.  Commissioner Cruz replied that there is no specific deadline, but he 

hopes to have the changes in place by September 2011. 

 

Ms. Robinson emphasized the need to strengthen parent involvement to help parents address 

the serious needs in the District, particularly regarding the declining quality of education. 

 

3.  Ricardo Adams 

 

Mr. Adams reported that he has been deluged with paperwork by the schools and school staff 

will not speak with him about his children’s progress without him having to complete 

additional paperwork.  He stated that this is a significant barrier in terms of District – parent 

partnerships. 

 

Mr. Adams described a situation in which a teacher wanted to discipline his child, and he was 

able to intervene to help the teacher understand more effective ways of approaching his 

daughter.  He expressed concern that discipline is one of the areas of cooperation being 

removed from the Parent Involvement policy because of the significance to parents and the 

potential consequences for children. 

 

Mr. Adams also urged that the section regarding consulting with parents to identify and 

analyze problems be reinstated. 

 

4.  Howard Eagle 

 

Mr. Eagle expressed concern regarding parent representation in a number of District 

organizations:   

 

 Only one parent on the District-wide School-Based Planning Team Steering 

Committee 

 

 Un-democratic selection process for parent representatives to serve on District-wide 

Parent Council.  This year parent representatives have been selected by school 

principals rather than by the parents themselves, so the extent to which parents are 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 5 
 

actually represented is highly questionable.  The Superintendent unilaterally 

disbanded the previous Parent Council, which had been democratically elected by 

parents themselves. 

 

 There is no mechanism for representatives on parent organizations to communicate 

with parents themselves to accurately represent their perspective. 

 

Mr. Eagle cited a recent study by the Annenberg Foundation which showed that parent 

involvement is the most critical factor affecting educational quality and success, yet this is 

not recognized by the District. 

 

Mr. Eagle stated that the roles of Parent Liaison and Home School Assistant are ill-defined, 

so that school principals can use these staff members for many other purposes unrelated to 

parent-school collaboration. 

 

Mr. Eagle also urged reinstating the provision requiring parents to be consulted, rather than 

stating that they “may” be consulted in each of the areas of cooperation in the policy. 

 

5.  Glenny A. Williams 

 

Mr. Williams also objected to replacing “shall” with “may” in terms of consulting with 

parents in each of the areas of cooperation in the policy. 

 

Mr. Williams emphasized the significance of regulations in realizing policy provisions, and 

urged the Commissioners to examine the regulation in conjunction with the Parent 

Involvement policy.   

 

Mr. Williams noted that the Parent Involvement policy is required to be developed in 

collaboration with parents, rather than by the Administration.  He stated that the 

Administration should meet with parent organizations to revise the policy section by section. 

 

Mr. Williams also pointed out the imbalance of power in many District organizations with 

parent representation.  As an example, he stated that the School-Based Planning Teams 

(SBPT) are charged with planning and approving of the school curriculum.  However, the 

SBPTs are typically comprised of 10-12 teachers and only 1-3 parents.  Being considerably 

outnumbered is a significant barrier in terms of parents’ opportunities to provide input.  Mr. 

Williams noted that the Superintendent has disregarded the plans of the SBPTs in making his 

own unilateral decisions.  He stated that the policy is invalid if the Superintendent can 

supersede it and does not have to consult with SBPTs or other parent organizations to 

consider their plans and decisions.  Mr. Williams asserted that the underlying issue is a lack 

of shared decision-making with parents in the District. 

 

6.  Mary Adams 

 

Ms. Adams stated that she has fought against mayoral control of the District precisely 

because Board members are held accountable to parents and the community for educational 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 6 
 

performance.  She urged the Commissioners to hold the District accountable through 

evaluating parent engagement efforts. 

 

Ms. Adams asserted that decision-making at RCSD is often in the form of superficial 

attempts to involve parents in order to appease them.  As a result, parents become distrustful 

and suspect the Administration’s true motivation. 

 

Ms. Adams stated that the Strategic Plan for the District should be developed with student, 

parent and community involvement, rather than unilaterally determined by the 

Superintendent. 

 

She also emphasized the need for parent involvement in the restructuring and school closing 

process.  She stated that the Administration typically determines the information to provide 

to parents, rather than being based on parents’ information needs.  As an example, she stated 

that the Superintendent has spoken many times about under-utilization of elementary schools 

and recently announced that a large high school will be changed to a K-8 school.  Ms. Adams 

noted that the obvious implication is that neighborhood schools will be closed in the future, 

but parents are not informed of this. 

 

7.  Steve Benz 

 

Mr. Benz reported having participated on many organizations and committees in the District 

over the years.  He emphasized the need for accountability within the District for consulting 

with parents and involving them in decision-making. 

 

8.  Cheryl Marshall 

 

Ms. Marshall pointed out that the District is not complying with the existing Parent 

Involvement policy.  She asked how to begin nurturing a culture of parent involvement in the 

District, noting that this is particularly lacking at the school level.   

 

Ms. Marshall stated that some schools may have effective approaches to parent involvement, 

and these should be replicated in other schools throughout the District. 

 

Ms. Marshall expressed concern regarding implementation of Parent Involvement policy. 

 

9.  Peter Keenan 

 

Mr. Keenan requested that Board members contact City Council to request that the special 

election for Mayor be postponed until November to allow voter registration of District 

parents. 

 

10.  Elaine Francesco 

 

Ms. Francesco expressed concern about implementation of Parent Involvement policy and 

the fact that the regulation is being developed by the Superintendent.  She emphasized the 

need for parent involvement in developing guidelines for implementation of this policy. 



 

Prepared by D. Flanagan Page 7 
 

In terms of promoting a school climate conducive to parent involvement, Ms. Francesco 

pointed out: 

 

 the first contact at school is typically the security guard 

 phone calls are usually answered with voice mail 

 school staff are extremely difficult to reach 

 

Ms. Francesco also pointed out significant communication problems from the Superintendent 

determining the information parents should have, rather than being based on the information 

that parents want or need.   

 

Ms. Francesco noted that the online RCSD calendar is mostly blank, and should contain the 

same information as the printed calendar provided to parents at the beginning of the year. 

 

Ms. Francesco acknowledged the difficulty in evaluating parent involvement because of the 

difficulty in discerning superficial from genuine efforts. 

 

Ms. Francesco also stated that parents do not feel as though they are equal partners in the 

SBPTs because they are outnumbered by District “experts”. 

 

 

 

Commissioner Cruz asked whether anyone else would like to speak at this point. 

 

 

Motion to adjourn by Commissioner Campos.  Seconded by Commissioner White.  Adopted 

6-0, with concurrence of parent representative. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:20PM. 

 


